
WORK SESSION OF SEPTEMBER 18, 2012               
 
Mayor Baratta called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Baratta, Deputy Mayors Cosgrove and Trawinski, 
Councilmembers Peluso and Swain. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Manager Metzler, Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski and Attorney 
Mondello. 
 
CLOSED SESSION RESOLUTION:  
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Swain and a second by Deputy Mayor 
Trawinski, the following closed session resolution was unanimously adopted at  
7:35 p.m. 
 
 WHEREAS; the Open Public Meeting act of the State of New Jersey permits 
the public to be excluded from certain matters to be discussed by the 
Governing Body; and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Fair Lawn desire to 
discuss Pending Litigation – Tax Appeals; and 
 
 WHEREAS; these matters are ones which permit the exclusion of the public 
from such discussions; and 
 
 WHEREAS; minutes will be taken during this closed session and once the 
need the confidentiality no longer exists the minutes will be available to the 
public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
Borough of Fair Lawn that the public be excluded since these matters as set 
forth above are ones which permit the exclusion of the public from such 
discussions.  
 
Mayor Baratta reconvened the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
VETERAN & VOLUNTEER COALITION PROGRAM 
 
Jim Van Kruiningen, Assistant to the Borough Manager, was present.  
 
Jim Van Kruiningen stated that the Veteran and Volunteer Coalition Program will 
expire December 31, 2012.  He asked if the Council would like to continue the 
program or publicize the County program instead.  Manager Metzler explained 
that there are a large number of businesses listed in the program that are no 



Page 2 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

longer in Fair Lawn, so if they continue he would want to start from scratch.  He 
suggested having the Veterans Volunteer Coalition Committee reach out to the 
businesses to see if they are interested in participating.  There are costs involved 
with the program as members are given ID cards, which will also expire on 
December 31st.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski asked how many veterans participated. Jim Van 
Kruiningen stated that when he renewed the program in 2009 he ran off 200 
membership cards, although it is an ongoing process since cards are issued to 
new members and to those who lost cards.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that 
if the Borough continues the program, they should check if the County’s veteran 
ID cards would be accepted by Fair Lawn businesses.  Jim Van Kruiningen 
stated that he checked the County site, which included about 35 Fair Lawn 
businesses.  However, many of those businesses were also closed.   
 
Jim Van Kruiningen stated that in 2009 a letter was sent to every business 
address that they had.  The Chamber of Commerce also did an email blast.  
Deputy Mayor Trawinski suggested that the BIC and RRIC notify their businesses 
as well.   
 
Manager Metzler asked if the Council wanted to merge with the County 
program and provide them with a list of what has been compiled.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski felt it would be a plus for veterans since they could record their 
discharge papers with the County, where they will remain permanently on 
record for future use by a family member.  It would also prevent the cost 
incurred by a double expenditure.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove asked if the 
volunteers would use the existing ID cards.  Manager Metzler confirmed that 
they would.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove asked if the Veterans Volunteer Coalition was still 
active.  Jim Van Kruiningen stated that the Committee is renewed yearly at the 
Reorganizational meeting and is comprised of the Chiefs from each emergency 
organization, plus a representative from RRIC, BIC and the Chamber. 
Councilmember Swain asked if Fair Lawn veterans and volunteers would be 
able to get their ID card through the Borough if they switch to the County 
program.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated they would have to go to the County 
for the picture ID, which is done on the spot.  Jim Van Kruiningen stated that 
when he reminds participants about the County program, many indicate they 
did not have the time or transportation to go to Hackensack for the photo ID.  
Manager Metzler suggested asking the County if Fair Lawn’s card could be 
accepted for the County program.   Councilmember Peluso wondered if they 
could take the picture in Fair Lawn and submit it to the County.   
 
Jim Van Kruiningen noted that since they already had the card stock and 
software, the only other expense was the cost of the window decal given out to 



Page 3 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

participating businesses.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that he would be 
happy to arrange a meeting with the Chamber and others.  Manager Metzler 
asked if the County gave out decals to the stores.  Mayor Baratta stated that 
they did not.   
 
There was unanimous consensus that Manager Metzler research whether the 
County and the Borough’s Veterans & Volunteer Discount programs could be 
combined and that a Veterans Volunteer Committee meeting be scheduled to 
obtain input.   
 
FARMERS’ MARKET 
 
Jane Spindel, chairperson of the Garden Committee, was present. 
 
Ms. Spindel expressed concern about the future of the Farmers’ Market.  The 
program was supposed to run into October, but crops were low and next week 
is Yom Kippur so some vendors may not return.  They lost two vendors this year 
because sales were low and another vendor last year.  The farmer makes the 
minimum and is satisfied.   
 
She asked Glen Rock if they would be interested in having a joint market, 
perhaps at Walsh Pool, which is located right off Route 208 and has bathrooms 
and electric.  They would have to schedule this during the week as she could 
not get a farmer on weekends.  Mayor Baratta thought the problem was that 
the market was held on a Wednesday.  Ms. Spindel stated that the Radburn 
train station was ideal but they could not use it on a weekday.  The apartment 
tenants are not coming.  They tried advertising and starting two weeks earlier to 
get the momentum going, but many residents are not aware the market exists.  
If they move the location and join with Glen Rock she may be able to get more 
vendors.   
 
Mayor Baratta asked what Glen Rock’s role would be.  Ms. Spindel stated that 
they would alternate volunteers to monitor the market.   She would try to get 
another farmer to overlap and stay open later, because commuters miss out 
because they close too early.  Mayor Baratta stated that she liked the idea of 
joining with Glen Rock.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove agreed.  Attorney Mondello 
stated that he could work with Bob Garibaldi, Glen Rock’s Borough Attorney to 
do a shared services agreement.   
 
Councilmember Swain stated that she joined a Community Supporter 
Agriculture (CSA), who comes every week to Whole Foods from 5:00 to 7:00 p.m. 
for members to pick up their share.  She felt those hours might be better for a 
second farmer or another vendor to bridge the gap.  Councilmember Peluso 
stated that they might want to reach out to Hawthorne, who is also close by.  
Ms. Spindel stated that Hawthorne has a market on Sunday.  Mayor Baratta 



Page 4 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

stated that Ramsey has a large market on Sunday and all their volunteer groups 
participate.  Ms. Spindel stated that her farmer is not available on a weekend.  
Manager Metzler noted that parking would be impossible as well.  He will speak 
with Superintendent Graff to make sure there aren’t any activities going on.  Ms. 
Spindel stated that she would like to stay with this farmer, although some 
residents wish he would open earlier.   
 
Attorney Mondello stated that the only benefit of joining with Glen Rock was to 
obtain additional volunteers.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that the market 
could be jointly advertised.  Attorney Mondello stated that there is nothing they 
could do to bind the Glen Rock volunteers to show up on alternating 
Wednesdays.   
 
There was consensus for Jane Spindel to contact Glen Rock about having a joint 
Farmers’ Market at Walsh Pool every Wednesday during select months.   
 
COMMUNITY GARDEN 
 
Councilmember Peluso stated that the Garden Committee would like to install a 
shed at the Community Garden for storing the gardeners’ tools and supplies. Ms. 
Spindel stated that they found an 8 x 10 shed.  If the Council will allow the 
installation of the shed at the park, the Garden Committee would donate it to 
the town for use at the Community Garden.  She hoped the town would waive 
the Building permit fee.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that they did not need a 
building permit as the shed was being installed on Borough property, but either 
way they were immune from their ordinances. Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski 
stated that the Council has always taken the position that they did not want to 
be exempt from their ordinances.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that they only 
time they allow Borough property to be used is for a non-profit operation or a 
committee of the Council.  It was absurd to take it from one pocket and put it in 
another.   
 
Mayor Baratta asked if a shed was one of the items residents expressed concern 
about when they first discussed the garden.  Ms. Spindel stated that there was 
concern about kids hanging out making noise and breaking into their homes.  
There has been no garbage and the gardeners clean up after themselves.  
Every plot is sold out and there is a waiting list of six families.  Attorney Mondello 
stated there may be a concern if tools are stolen.  Ms. Spindel stated that 
gardeners understand that and they will put their names on their tools.  Mayor 
Baratta asked that Attorney Mondello review the plot agreements to see if 
anything needs to be added regarding the shed.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that United Water has $15,000 grants available 
for zero-scape gardens.  He will give her the brochure.   
 



Page 5 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

There was consensus to allow the Garden Committee to donate an 8 x 10 shed, 
which will be installed at the Community Garden for the storage of gardening 
tools and supplies.    
 
REVIEW OF TENTATIVE AGENDA 
 
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that she is sending home the September 4th 
Closed Session and Work Session minutes, which will be added to the agenda.   
 
She would like to add a change order request from Engineer Garrison regarding 
the Library Roof Replacement in the amount of $9,655.49, due to unforeseen 
additional work.   Deputy Mayor Trawinski asked what the total cost of the job 
was.  Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that the total job was $59,000.  The 
contractor found that the rails supporting the air conditioner had rotted and 
needed to be replaced.  They were working on the weekend when no one was 
around, but the roof had to be closed up due to predicted rain.  They can wait 
but the next Work Session won’t be until October 9th.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski asked for the Manager’s recommendation.  Manager 
Metzler recommended that it be paid.  The air conditioning unit had to be 
raised and the curbing had to be changed.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated 
that 20% of the roof is concrete instead of metal decking.  Councilmember 
Swain asked if this occurred because of the continuous leaking.  Manager 
Metzler stated that it was.  They lay the curbing and then float the roof over that.  
This is not damage that would have been visible when they looked at it.   
 
There was consensus to approve the Change Order in the amount of $9,655.49 
for additional unforeseen work on the Library Roof Replacement project.   
 
Councilmember Swain inquired what improvements on Chandler Drive were 
referenced in Resolution No. 282 with regards to Community Development 
grants.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that the grant was for paving on 
Chandler Drive and Carlton Place.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski asked if he could vote on this resolution since all 
municipalities were involved.  Attorney Mondello asked if this was like most of his 
votes where he had no involvement or vested interest.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski 
confirmed that he did not decide anything on this.  The grants were determined 
solely by HUD regulations.  Attorney Mondello confirmed that Deputy Mayor 
Trawinski did not need to recuse himself.   
 
COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 
 
Councilmember Swain discussed the RRIC and the $800 grant that they 
received from the Borough for holiday lighting.  Since there was not going to be 



Page 6 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

a Canoe Regatta their donation was returned.  There will be a joint effort to 
maintain the Lackland Property, with the Borough doing the mowing and RRIC 
picking up the litter.   
 
They also discussed taxes.  The RRIC wondered if Manager Metzler would meet 
with the RRIC and BIC, with Don Smartt also attending.  She asked if there was 
any resolution to this matter.  Manager Metzler stated that the Chamber of 
Commerce had notified him that some commercial and retail property owners 
had concerns about the tax rate.  He will be attending the Chamber’s meeting 
on September 25th to answer questions.  He asked Assessor Henderson to attend 
as well but he is not available that day.  The Chamber reached out to the 
businesses but only one has forwarded a question, which will be answered by 
Assessor Henderson in writing.  Another property owner who received a letter, 
graph and survey, stated that his questions were answered satisfactorily.  He 
confirmed that the $800 for holiday lighting has been paid. 
 
Councilmember Swain reported that the Community School was offering a new 
cooking class and adapted dance class for children with special needs.  More 
information can be found online at the Community School website.   
 
The ADA Committee sponsored a Jackals Game during the summer that was 
attended by 90 children and adults.  Emil DeLuccia, a wonderful volunteer, 
contributed an ADA Committee banner for the game that will be used at other 
events.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove noted that Saul and Geri Rochman donated 
the game tickets.  Councilmember Swain stated that there is a dance Friday 
that is being sponsored by the Knights of Pythias and another dance November 
30th. 
 
She, Deputy Mayor Cosgrove and Manager Metzler attended the opening day 
celebration for the new soccer program for children with special needs.  It was a 
wonderful day with lots of children in attendance.  There were many adult 
coaches and teen volunteers who served as “buddies”.  All Sports hired two 
professional British soccer coaches to assist with the program.   This was a great 
shared service of Saddle Brook and Fair Lawn sports.  
 
She concluded by stating that there was consensus from the ADA Committee to 
become a sub-committee of the 501(c)3 Committee of the Community Center.  
The Committee has requested a formal letter outlining this transition and 
confirming they will have their own bank account.  Attorney Mondello stated 
that he will ask Stuart Liebman to send the letter since he represents the 501(c)3 
Committee. 
 
Councilmember Peluso stated that the Garden Committee was the only 
committee that met and their concerns regarding the shed were addressed 
earlier.   



Page 7 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that the 501(c)3 Committee(c)3 will be holding 
a dinner dance on October 27th at the Community Center at 7:00 p.m.  The cost 
is $60 per person and the Cameos will be performing.   
 
He gave a tour of the Community Center to Renee DeMaria and Lou Verile, 
Saddle Brook Recreation Directors and Mayor Chamberlain.  Saddle Brook has 
thought about building a community center for years but funds may not be 
available.  Mayor Chamberlain spoke to the Saddle Brook Council, who is 
interested in the possibility of having a shared service agreement for the use of 
the Community Center.  He would like Council consensus authorizing Manager 
Metzler to discuss this further with Saddle Brook.     
 
Manager Metzler stated that he met with representatives from Saddle Brook to 
discuss recycling, vehicle maintenance, animal control, water main repair and 
water sampling.  He will put together a cost analysis for their review.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski stated that there was pending Legislation that says if a 
municipality has an opportunity for shared service and they do not act on it, 
there will be a corresponding loss of State aid.  Manager Metzler stated that he 
will be discussing that under Best Practices.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that 
these opportunities might help them maintain or enhance their State aid, as well 
as help the town with which they are working. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that the Community Center Committee 
discussed the TV sets on the exercise equipment that now require a cable box in 
order to work.  The Committee will look into getting cable boxes, which must be 
visible in order to change channels.  The Chairperson, Lou Weiss will research this 
further.  Since the cost is roughly $50 a month it is the Committee’s intent to get 
the televisions back working.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski suggested speaking to the 
Board of Public Utilities and Cablevision directly.  Manager Metzler stated that 
he already spoke to Gary Shaw.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski suggested speaking to 
Cablevisions offices in Long Island as there are some programs available for 
non-profits.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove reported that Flossie Dobrow’s son had donated a tree 
in her memory, which was going to be planted in front of Borough Hall.  The 
Shade Tree Commission wanted to know when the planting will take place so 
they can have a ceremony.  Manager Metzler will follow up on this item.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove reported that the truck committee will meet to discuss 
specifications for the twp new trucks, which will go out to bid within the next 90 
days.  The Fire Department has entered into a “handshake” shared service 
agreement with Elmwood Park, who will let them use their industrial machine for 
washing fire trucks their gear and Fair Lawn will allow them to use their training 
center.  Manager Metzler stated that once they enter into a Shared Services 



Page 8 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

agreement some items start moving out from under the Cap, which is significant.  
They must have formal agreements.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that he will 
have Chief Reamy give Manager Metzler the details. 
 
He concluded by stating that former Mayors Bob Landzettel and Steve 
Weinstein have agreed to work with Stu Herrmann and Steven Kiel to formulate 
an EDC proposal to present to the Council.  They will focus on retention and 
recruitment.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that he attended the meeting for the BIC, which 
shared the same concerns as the RRIC regarding taxes.  He was glad to hear 
that the issue was addressed.   
 
Mayor Baratta stated that she met with Mr. Chen, owner of Yogurt Plus in 
Radburn.  He wanted to open a frozen yogurt shop in Ridgewood but was told 
he could not because they already had their limit of such shops.  Mr. Chen 
thought that it would be a good idea for Fair Lawn to have a similar law limiting 
duplicate businesses.  Another frozen yogurt shop was opening up on River 
Road and he was concerned that it would cut into his business. Mr. Chen was 
advised that she did not support that idea, and that she was not even sure that 
it could legally be done.  Attorney Mondello agreed that the idea sounded 
illegal and improper.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that the only type of 
geographical use limitations the courts have allowed for environmental or 
constitutional reasons are gas stations, porn shops and liquor licenses, otherwise 
they are stricken down as unfair restriction on competition.   
 
There was unanimous consensus not to pursue this matter further. 
 
Mayor Baratta stated that she and Manager Metzler will be bagging groceries 
at Shop Rite as part of the “Help Bag Hunger” campaign tomorrow at 12:00.   
 
BURGLAR ALARM ORDINANCE 
 
Attorney Mondello stated that he spoke with Sgt. Schultz about one issue that 
prohibited alarm companies who install alarms that do not require monitoring.  
Sgt. Schultz agreed that it could be removed.  Attorney Mondello will send a 
red-lined copy to the Council for final approval.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove 
confirmed that this was needed for the accreditation process.   
 
LYNCREST & WILLOW TRAFFIC SAFETY CONTROL – POSSIBLE 3RD STOP SIGN OR 
SPEED TABLE 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that due to numerous accidents at the corner of 
Lyncrest Avenue and Willow Street, the stop sign has gradually decreased in 
height and they are no longer back to back stop signs.  He asked for Council 



Page 9 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

consensus to have DPW review this matter and place the stop signs back-to-
back.  He suggested that Manager Metzler look into some type of speed table 
device on Lyncrest to reduce excessive speeding, as this also significantly 
impacts the speeding between St. Anne’s Street and Broadway.  He disclosed 
he was a Trustee of St. Anne’s but was not speaking as one.      
 
Manager Metzler stated that there were two pending traffic tables.  He spoke 
with Traffic Safety Officer Franco and Engineer Garrison and the work will be 
done as part of the re-paving program in March, 2013.  He has not received an 
official recommendation from Traffic Safety Officer Franco regarding the 
installation of a speed table.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that new legislation 
states that if a municipality receives State aid for any paving or infrastructure 
projects it must be used within two years; otherwise it is returned to the DOT trust 
fund.  Manager Metzler stated that they were okay on their grants. 
 
There was a unanimous consensus to have Manager Metzler speak to Traffic 
Safety Officer Franco. 
 
RESOLUTION CALLING FOR FAIR DISTRIBUTION OF STATE AID FOR EDUCATION 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that the Board of Education has passed a 
resolution along with 12 other towns and other Boards of Education calling for 
the fair and equitable distribution of education funds in the State.  He felt they 
should support this as the Board of Education does not feel they are getting their 
fair share of State aid.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski did not have a problem doing this but felt they would 
be wasting their time.  The New Jersey Supreme Court has taken over the 
allocation of State Aid.  The 31 Abbott districts get 61% of the $8.9 billion dollars 
provided for education while the other districts share the remaining State aid.   
Legislators on both sides have failed the school children of New Jersey by 
refusing to address this issue in a bi-partisan fashion and solving it once and for 
all.  In 1991 Kentucky Supreme Court declared the local property taxes as an 
unconstitutional way of funding public school education.  The Legislature and 
the Governor sat down together and created the Kentucky Education Reform 
Act and established a constitutional method for funding property taxes, which 
the New Jersey Legislators have failed to do in 35 years.   
 
Currently the Supreme Court suffers as they are down two Justices because of 
the fight between the Governor and the legislative committees.  The Governor 
and Legislature came up with an increased funding mechanism last year and 
the Court threw it out.  They can send all the papers they want but he did not 
believe it will help.  He heard that $30,000 per pupil is spent in Asbury Park, where 
they have a turf field and 23% graduation rate, while the average in New Jersey 



Page 10 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

is $9,500 per student.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove agreed but felt they should still 
send the message and support their School Board.   
 
Councilmember Peluso asked how much State aid Fair Lawn receives.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski stated that the amount increased $500,000 for a total amount in 
the vicinity of $3.7 million.  He will give the actual figures to the Manager.  
Councilmember Swain felt reform was long overdue, but this resolution is just one 
method of reform.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that they were trying to send 
the message that they recognize there is an inequity that should be resolved.  
Councilmember Peluso thought they should modify the resolution to state that 
they believe in equal education for all.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that this 
should be removed from the Supreme Court and dealt with by the Legislature in 
a manner that is fair and reasonable for all students in the State.  Deputy Mayor 
Cosgrove stated that he will work with Attorney Mondello to change the 
wording to reflect that they did not think it was fair and equitable the way the 
funding was currently being distributed.     
 
There was unanimous consensus to adopt a resolution indicating that they did 
not think school funding was being distributed in a fair and equitable manner.   
 
REQUEST TO INSTALL TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 
LIGHT TOWER AND CROSS RIVER FIBER, LLC. 
 
Attorney Mondello stated that the resolutions would give Light Tower and Cross 
River Fiber permission to install fiber optics in the Borough.  This has been done 
previously for AT&T and another firm.  Neither carrier wanted to pay the 
Borough, despite the fact that there were two previous resolutions that provided 
for $500 or $100 per mile, whichever was greater.  Both companies have agreed 
to the terms of the resolution. 
 
Councilmember Swain expressed concern over how long it takes to make 
repairs to the roadway.  When PSE&G was fixing something along Plaza Road, 
they left a plate in the road which was horrendous.  She had to call numerous 
times before it was repaired.  She asked if they could stipulate that repairs be 
made in a timely manner.   
 
2012 BEST PRACTICES 
 
Manager Metzler stated that the 2012 Best Practices report was previously 
distributed by CFO Palermo.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski mentioned earlier how 
shared services had a direct effect on the amount of State aid received and  
noted that the first question asked if the municipality had actively negotiated 
with nearby towns or entered into any shared service agreements.   
 



Page 11 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

The Borough answered “yes” to 41 out of 50 questions, with seven “no” 
responses and two “no answers”.  Their overall percentage was 86%, which 
qualifies the Borough for 100% of their State aid.  He reviewed the questions that 
were answered “no” or “no answer”.    
 
2011 CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
 
Manager Metzler stated that CFO Palermo had previously distributed the 2011 
Corrective Action Plan, which is a result of their Auditor either finding bad 
practices or inconsistencies,  mostly in the Municipal Court.  In every case CFO 
Palermo has either already implemented changes or will have the corrective 
plan in place by December 1, 2012.   
 
PUBLIC ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SOVRAN PROPERTY (STORAGE ASSETS) GATEWAY 
PROPERTY DONATION 
 
Manager Metzler stated that this pertains to the acquisition of the land across 
from Uncle Bob’s storage on Wagaraw Road.  He would like the Council’s 
permission to schedule a dedication ceremony and include the RRIC.   
 
There was unanimous consensus to authorize Manager Metzler to schedule a 
dedication ceremony to acknowledge the donation of land by Sovran Property.   
 
2013 ITEMS – FAIR AND OPEN VS. NON-FAIR AND OPEN PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
CONTRACTS 
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that the Council needs to decide which 
contracts they want to go out for RFP’s or RFQ’s, as it was a time consuming 
process.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski asked if she would provide a list of the current 
contracts and indicate whether they were an RFQ, RFP or professional services 
contract.  Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that she would.     
 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Claude Bienstock, 39-11B Broadway stated that the Borough survey was an 
outstanding idea.     
 
He felt the Federal Government had to take steps with regards to flooding so 
that they do not have the damage that they experienced with Hurricane Floyd 
and Hurricane Irene.  He sent a letter to President Obama and Presidential 
candidate Mitt Romney, as he was very concerned about this matter. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove asked Manager Metzler for an update as to the 
number of surveys received.  Manager Metzler stated that just over 15% has 
been received.   
 



Page 12 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

Pam Coles, 13-34 George Street asked Manager Metzler how the funds for 
paving are allocated.  Manager Metzler stated that paving was done on a 
rotational basis, with some flexibility to accommodate the installation of 
underground utility lines.  Engineering prepares a schedule based upon the 
number of miles they can do with the amount of funding available.  As costs 
increase the number of miles they can repave is reduced.   
 
Ms. Coles stated that one half of George Street heading north was repaved and 
the other side was left with many bumps.  Manager Metzler explained that the 
repaving of George Street was done by the utility company and not the 
Borough.  The Borough had to fight to get the utilities to repave the street 
instead of just refilling the trench when work was completed.  Ms. Coles asked if 
the utility company could do the other half of the street.  Deputy Mayor 
Trawinski stated there was no chance of that happening.   
 
Ms. Coles stated that cars speed down George Street, which is used as a cut 
through from Fair Lawn Avenue and River Road.  Manager Metzler will pass the 
information along to the Police Department.   
 
Ms. Coles inquired about the enforcement of overnight parking restrictions,   
since many tickets were being given out on her block.   Manager Metzler stated 
that the number of tickets being written has increased considerably, although it 
is not the top priority when the Police are trying to apprehend burglars.   
 
Ms. Coles concluded by stating that she, Felice and Larry Koplik attended an 
estate sale at the Vander Plaat house, which is magnificent.  She realized the 
cost was high, but it would be a terrible shame to lose this home.    
 
Rich Seibel, 33-07 Halsey Road stated he, Deputy Mayor Cosgrove and Pam 
Coles attended a benefit for Mike Stanzione, a 1975 Fair Lawn High School 
graduate with Pompeii disease.  It was a fun affair for a good cause. 
 
He stated that Alan Krutchkoff, a Fair Lawn resident who runs the Adopt-a-
Soldier Platoon, needs helps in winning a $10,000 grant from Chase Bank by 
having people vote for the organization.  Mayor Baratta stated that she had 
difficulty reaching the link to vote.  Councilmember Swain would have preferred 
being directed to a site where you could just vote, as the Chase site required 
some personal information.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove suggested going through 
the Adopt-a-Soldier Facebook page.  Mr. Siebel asked everyone to pass along 
the information to their friends on Facebook.  Mayor Baratta noted that Patch 
also did an article about this contest. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that Mayor Baratta was instrumental in helping 
Mr. Stanzione with respect to required documentation.  Mayor Baratta stated 
that is was her pleasure to help him.   



Page 13 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

Felice Koplik, 6 Reading Terrace spoke about the Vander Plaat house, which is 
an important historic resource. Someone from the Paramus Reformed Church 
found important papers on Richard Vander Plaat’s career and information on 
the house, which were given to her for the Cadmus House.  She explained the 
history of the house.  As chairperson of the Historic Preservation Commission, she 
was concerned that something would happen to the house. 
 
Attorney Mondello explained that the nephew, who is the executor, will share 
an inheritance with 12 charities.  The executor is in talks with a developer to use 
the property as an age-restricted assisted living.  There is a flexible purchase 
price depending on how many units can be built.  The area is zoned for single 
family homes, so if they do not get approval from the Zoning Board they can 
probably build three to five homes.  If Zoning Board approval is received, they 
can build 70 to 80 units.  The flexible purchase price is over $2 million dollars.  The 
attorney for the estate said they he would entertain all types of prices if they 
wanted to relocate or purchase the house.   
 
Larry Koplik, 6 Reading Terrace stated that the owners were very aware of the 
house’s historic significance.  Many of the people who came to the estate sale 
expressed sentiment not only for the house but for Richard Vander Platt as well.   
Since the house is on three acres in a community with a good school system 
and easy access to New York City, it is a possibility that they could find a private 
buyer with a historic interest that may want to purchase the house.   
 
CLOSED SESSION RESOLUTION:  
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Trawinski and a second by Councilmember 
Swain, the following closed session resolution was unanimously adopted at  9:20 
p.m. 
 
 WHEREAS; the Open Public Meeting act of the State of New Jersey permits 
the public to be excluded from certain matters to be discussed by the 
Governing Body; and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Fair Lawn desire to 
discuss Pending Litigation – Keller, Bolkin; Contract Negotiations – 
COAH/Promenade, Chief of Police and Blue and White Collar Association; 
 
 WHEREAS; these matters are ones which permit the exclusion of the public 
from such discussions; and 
 
 WHEREAS; minutes will be taken during this closed session and once the 
need the confidentiality no longer exists the minutes will be available to the 
public. 
 



Page 14 Work Session September 18, 2012 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
Borough of Fair Lawn that the public be excluded since these matters as set 
forth above are ones which permit the exclusion of the public from such 
discussions.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Trawinski and a second by Councilmember 
Swain, the Work Session was adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 

             
     Respectfully submitted, 

             
      ________________________________________                          
      Joanne M. Kwasniewski, RMC/CMC/MMC  
      Municipal Clerk       
                

The undersigned have read and approve the foregoing minutes.  
 
 

__________________________ 
Mayor Jeanne Baratta 

 
                                                        ____________________________  
Deputy Mayor John Cosgrove   Councilman Kurt Peluso   

     
                                                            ______________________________   
Councilwoman Lisa Swain   Deputy Mayor Ed Trawinski   
 
 
 


